
 
 

 

 

 

       

   
 

 

AGENDA 
 

 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

2. AGENDA ADDITIONS & DELETIONS      Action 

 

3. MOTION TO APPROVE AGENDA      Action 

 

4. PRESENTATIONS/INTRODUCTIONS 

a) Introduction of Tihisha Sharif, Human Resources Director 

b) Presentation by Mayor Alvarez-Certificate of Achievement to Eagle Scout Andrew Lanier 

c) Presentation by Linda Angus of the Operational and Fiscal Review 

d) Presentation by Chris Palaté of Monroe-Union County Economic Development 

 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS FOR FY 2016/2017 BUDGET DEVELOPMENT 

 

7. LAW ENFORCEMENT UPDATE 

 

8. DEPARTMENT UPDATES: 

a) Department Head Update:  Parks & Recreation—Jason Tryon 

b) Department Head Update:  Finance—Jim Wojtowicz  

 

9. CONSENT AGENDA        Action 

a) Approval Budget Amendments #544-#546 

b) Approval of Tax Month End Report for March 2016 

c) Approval of 4
th
 of July Proclamation Honoring Korean War Veterans 

d) Approval of Arbor Day Proclamation 

e) Approval of Amended Carolina Courts Agreement 

f) Approval of Amended Chestnut Parkway Capital Project Ordinance  (for consistency with 

Council action of 3/22/16 approving Phase 2 Right-of-Way design) 

g) Approval of Updated Budget Schedule for preparation of the FY 16-17 Budget 

 

10. PUBLIC HEARINGS        Action 
                 – Please adhere to the following guidelines: 

 Proceed to the podium, and state your name and address clearly; 

    TOWN COUNCIL 
 

     Gordon B. Daniels 
 

       Gary M. Savoie 
 

       Amy R. Stanton 
 

     Mark A. Wireman 

MAYOR 
Michael L Alvarez 

 

MAYOR PRO TEM 

David L. Cohn 

 

TOWN MANAGER 

Scott J. Kaufhold 

Indian Trail Town Council  

Regular Meeting  

Tuesday, April 12, 2016 
Civic Building—6:30 PM 



 Be concise; avoid repetition; limit comments to three (3) minutes or less; 

 Designate a spokesperson for large groups 

 

a) ZT2016-003 Grand Opening Banners: Proposed amendment to Unified Development 

Ordinance Chapters 940 and 970 to remove permit requirements for business grand opening 

banners. Applicant: Town of Indian Trail (Ordinance #0160412-235) 

 

b) ZT2016-001 and CPA 2016-001: Hotel and Mixed Building Uses:  Proposed amendment to 

Unified Development Ordinance Chapters 520, 810, 1010, 1610, create new Chapters 7220 

and 7230, and amend Comprehensive Plan Chapter 3 to permit hotel-motel uses and mixed-

use buildings within the Village Center overlay districts and related amendments.  Applicant: 

Moser Group.  (Ordinance #0160412-236) 

 

11. BOARD & COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS     Action 
a) ABC Board--Council to appoint a member to Seat #3 for a 3-year term ending March 31, 

2019 

-One application has been received as of 4/6/16--Mr. Robert Laatz (incumbent)  

 

b) Planning/Tree Board—Council to appoint members to the following vacant seats: 

 Seat #4 (Regular Member unexpired 3-year term ends 6/30/18) 

 Alternate #1 (possible appointment; dependant on appointment to Seat #2; this 

Alternate member has applied for the Regular Member Seat so if he is appointed to the 

Regular Seat then this Alternate position would be made vacant term ends 6/30/17)  

Applications for the Planning/Tree Board have been received from the following:  Jorge Aponte 

(currently an Alternate Member); Joseph Lytch, Jayson Derosier and Arthur Spurr. 

 

c) Board of Adjustment—Council to appoint members to the following vacant seats: 

 Alternate #1 term ending 6/30/16 

 Alternate #3 term ending 6/30/18 

Applications for the Board of Adjustment have been received from Kat Miller and John Eigenbrode 

 

12.  OLD BUSINESS ITEMS        Action 
a) CZ2015-005 Waxhaw-Indian Trail Road:  This is a rezone request to establish a 

Conditional Zoning Single Family district for 49 single-family units on a parcel approximately 

16 acres.  The proposed project is intended to be a senior housing concept development.  The 

parcels are located on the east side of Waxhaw Indian Trail Road, north of Blanchard Circle. 

(Parcels: 07117010, 07117010A, 07117010B and 07117010C) Applicant: Blake Communities 

VP2-SC, LLC.  PUBLIC HEARING was held March 22, 2016; Council requested 

additional information which has been provided to Council by staff.  Council should discuss if 

the additional information is sufficient before considering the following actions: 

(1) Consider approval of the consistency findings 

(2) Motion to approve or disapprove CZ2015-005 as presented in the second reading 

(Ordinance #0160412-234). 

        

13. NEW BUSINESS ITEMS 

a) Council consideration of Phase 2 Operational & Fiscal Review proposal  

b) Council consideration of UCSO Contract Amendment 

c) Council consideration of C-4957 A Rogers Rd Sidewalk Improvements – CEI and Capital 

Ordinance 

d) Council consideration of Budget Appropriation; transfer to Stormwater Fund 

e) Council consideration of Traffic Calming Bid Results 

f) Council consideration of Traewyck Stormwater Design Fee 



g) Council direction to the Town Manager to add to the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 budget one full 

time sergeant position that was requested at the Town Council’s strategic planning session 

(Councilman Daniels) 

h) Council direction to the Town Manager to create a Strong Resolution for the April 26
th
 

Council Meeting to Demand NCDOT, who is constructing the Monroe Bypass to construct 

needed Sound Barriers for the Bonterra, Arbor Glen and other surrounding properties 

(Councilman Daniels) 

 

14. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 

15.  UPDATES 

a) Manager’s Update:  Scott Kaufhold, Town Manager 

b) Update-unsealing Closed Session Minutes-Town Clerk 

 

16. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 

17. CLOSED SESSION          Action 

 

18. POSSIBLE ACTION FOLLOWING CLOSED SESSION 

 

19. ADJOURN          Action 



 
       

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION 
 

IN RECOGNITION OF ANDREW LANIER FOR ACHIEVING THE RANK 
OF EAGLE SCOUT 

 
WHEREAS, The Boy Scouts of America was founded on February 8th, 1910, 

and has been at the forefront of instilling timeless values in our youth; and 

 

WHEREAS, The Boy Scouts of America is committed to helping millions of youth 
succeed by providing the support, friendship, and mentoring necessary for character 

building, citizenship training, and personal fitness; and 

 

WHEREAS, Andrew Lanier has been very active in the Boy Scouts and has 

recently completed his Eagle Service Project by constructing a human sundial at Hemby 

Bridge Elementary School for their outdoor learning area.  Andrew has held multiple 
leadershop positions including Senior Patrol Leader, OA Representative, Patrol Leader, 

Assistant Patrol Leader and Scribe.  Andrew was a member of Troop 151 from 2010 to 

2012 and has been a member of Troop 39 since 2012.  Andrew has been a member of 

the Order of the Arrow-Ordeal, Order of the Arrow-Brotherhood, Philmont, President of 

Robotics Club, Interact Rotary Club member, Interact leader, Mu Alpha Theta member 
and Rho Kappa member; and 

 

WHEREAS, Andrew Lanier achieved the coveted rank of Eagle Scout on 

January 18, 2016, the highest and most distinguished award earned by a Boy Scout, 

which reflects determination, dedication and leadership. 

 
 

NOW THEREFORE, I, Michael L. Alvarez, the Mayor of the Town of Indian Trail 

along with the Indian Trail Town Council recognize Andrew Lanier for his exceptional 

commitment and hard work in achieving the rank of Eagle Scout.  We honor you for 

your abilities, achievements and citizenship and wish you continued success in all your 
life’s endeavors. 

 

    
 
  BY: _________________________________________              

            Michael L. Alvarez, Mayor 











































 
PO Box 2430 • 130 Blythe Drive • Indian Trail • North Carolina • 28079 • (704) 821-5401• Fax (704) 821-9045 

 

Town of Indian Trail  

Memo 

 
TO: Mayor and Town Council 
 
FROM: Alicia Massey 
 
CC: Scott Kaufhold 
 
DATE: April 12, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Month End March 2016 
 
 

 

According to GS 105-350(7) it is the duty of the revenue collector to submit to the governing body at 
each of its regular meetings a report of the amount he/she has collected on each year’s taxes with which 
he is charged, the amount remaining uncollected, and the steps he/she is taking to encourage or enforce 
payment of uncollected taxes. 
 
Attached is the month end report for March 2016 collections.  The revenue department is using all 
collection remedies as provided by general statute to collect delinquent taxes including but not limited 
to garnishments, attachments and NC Debt Setoff.    
 
Current Collection Rate:  99.07% 
  

 



 
April 4, 2016                                           TOWN OF INDIAN TRAIL                                          Page No: 4    
11:57 AM                                    Property Tax Transaction Inquiry Totals Page                                            
 

                              --------------------------  Principal  -------------------------
Description   Count     Arrears/Other               2015               2016             Future             Penalty           Total

Billing       32159              0.00       7,281,995.64               0.00               0.00                         7,281,995.64 
 
Payments      30792         63,836.22-      7,212,213.12-              0.00               0.00            6,320.51-    7,282,369.85-
 
Reversals        13              0.00           5,767.12               0.00               0.00               20.43         5,787.55 
 
Adjustments    1695              0.00           2,477.40-              0.00               0.00              137.93-        2,615.33-
 
Apply Over        0              0.00               0.00               0.00               0.00                0.00             0.00 
 
Rev Appl Ovr      0              0.00               0.00               0.00               0.00                0.00             0.00 
 
Ref Overpay     198         62,200.35               0.00               0.00               0.00                0.00        62,200.35 
 
Penalty        2789                                                                                       8,051.24         8,051.24 
 Totals       67646          1,635.87-         73,072.24               0.00               0.00            1,613.23        73,049.60 



 

Town of Indian Trail Independence Day 2016 Parade  

Proclamation to Honor Korean War Veterans 

Whereas, on June 25, 1950 the Korean War began when 75,000 soldiers from the 

North Korean People’s Army poured across the 38th parallel marking the first military 

action of the Cold War; and 

 Whereas, by July 1950 American troops had entered the war on South Korea’s 

behalf because American officials were concerned this was a war against the forces of 

international communism; and 

 Whereas, American officials worked anxiously to fashion an armistice with 

North Korea but such efforts were not successful for three years; and 

 Whereas, by the end of the Korean War in July 1953, in all some 5 million 

soldiers and civilians had lost their lives; and 

 Whereas, almost 40,000 American soldiers died fighting in the Korean War and 

more than 100,000 of our troops were wounded; and 

 Whereas, Mayor Michael L. Alvarez believes all those Americans who fought in 

the Korean War should be honored and remembered for their sacrifices. 

 Now Therefore Mayor Alvarez and the Town Council Hereby Proclaim the 2016 

Annual Indian Trail 4th of July Parade shall take place in honor of Veterans of the 

Korean War in a testimony of thanks and gratitude for their selflessness and bravery. 

 

Proclaimed this the 12th day of April 2016. 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Mayor Michael L. Alvarez   



 
 

 
 

 

. Whereas, in 1872, J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of 

Agriculture that a special day be set aside for the planting of trees; and 
 

 

Whereas, this holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed with the planting of 

more than a million trees in Nebraska; and 
 

 

Whereas, Arbor Day is now observed throughout the Nation and the world; and 
 

 

Whereas, trees can reduce the erosion of our precious topsoil by wind and water, 

cut heating and cooling costs, moderate the temperature, clean the air, produce 

life-giving oxygen, and provide habitat for wildlife; and 
 

 

Whereas, trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our homes, 

fuel for our fires and countless other wood products; and 
 

 

Whereas, trees in our town increase property values, enhance the economic 

vitality of business areas, and beautify our community; and 
 

 

Whereas, trees, wherever they are planted, are a source of joy and spiritual 

renewal. 
 

 

Now, Therefore, I,  Michael L. Alvarez, Mayor of the Town of Indian Trail, do 

hereby proclaim April 23th, 2016, as Arbor Day in the Town of Indian Trail, and I 

urge all citizens to celebrate Arbor Day and to support efforts to protect our trees 

and woodlands; and 
 

 

Furthermore, I urge all citizens to plant trees to gladden the heart and promote the 

well-being of this and future generations. 
 

 

Dated this 12th day of April, 2016 



{00344939.DOCX V. T082.016091;}  

AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT REGARDING FACILITY OPERATION AND USE 
 

 THIS AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT REGARDING FACILITY OPERATION 

AND USE (this “Amendment”) is made as of _______________, 2016, by and between THE 

TOWN OF INDIAN TRAIL (“Town”) and PARTNERS IN HOOPS, LLC, a North Carolina 

limited liability company (“Partners”). 

WHEREAS, the Town and Partners are parties to the Agreement for Purchase and Sale 

dated August 14, 2012 (the “Purchase Contract”), relating to the purchase by Partners of real 

property known as Lot 1, containing 3.000 acres, as shown on the plat titled “Final Record Plat 

for the Town of Indian Trail” and recorded in Plat Cabinet L, File 900 of the Union County 

Public Registry (the “Property”); and 

WHEREAS, Partners has constructed and operates a building of approximately 48,000 

square feet containing at least the following amenities 8 basketball courts and 8 volleyball courts 

(the “Facility”) on the Property; and 

WHEREAS, the Town and Partners on March 22, 2013, entered into an Agreement 

Regarding Facility Operation and Use (the “Facilities Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the Town and Partners wish to amend certain provisions of the Facilities 

Agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Paragraph 2(c) is replaced and amended to read as follows: 

The Town may use the Facility for up to 8 one-day Town events per calendar year (such 

events shall not count toward the Open Court Hours), which events may be held on either 

week or weekend days, as reasonably determined by the Town and Partners.  The Town 

shall provide at least six (6) months’ notice to Partners prior to each such event. 

2. Paragraph 2(d) is replaced and amended to read as follows: 

Partners shall provide up to five (5) full camp scholarships for at-risk youths to 

participate in each camp team.  Partners shall provide a total of fifty (50) camp 

scholarships per calendar year. Preference will be given to Indian Trail residents. 

3. Except as amended hereby, the Facilities Agreement remains in full force and 

effect.  All capitalized terms used and not defined herein shall have the meanings set 

forth for those terms in the Agreement.  The provisions of this Amendment shall control 

in the event of a conflict with the provisions of the Facilities Agreement. 

 



{00344939.DOCX V. T082.016091;}  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first 

set forth above. 

  

PARTNERS IN HOOPS, LLC, 

a North Carolina limited liability company 

 

TOWN OF INDIAN TRAIL 

By:        

Name:       

Title:         

Date:       

By:        

Name:       

Title:         

Date:       

 

 

 

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 

and Fiscal Control Act.  

 

___________________________________ 

(Signature of finance officer) 

 

 

 

 

 

 











 
PO Box 2430 . 130 Blythe Drive . Indian Trail . North Carolina . 28079 . (704) 821-1314 . Fax (704) 821-1381 

 

Town of Indian Trail  

Memo 
 

TO:               Town Council and Mayor 

 

FROM:         Scott J. Kaufhold, Town Manager 

                       James Wojtowicz, Finance Director 
 

DATE:          April 12, 2016 
 

SUBJECT:  Amendment to the Chestnut Extension Capital Project Ordinance 

 

General Information: 

 

On March 22, 2016, Council approved Chestnut Parkway, Phase 2 design fee in the amount of 

$209,056.00. 
 

Pursuant to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the adoption of an 

ordinance is required in order to authorize capital project expenditures.  

 

Required Action: 

 

Approval of Amended Chestnut Extension Capital Project Ordinance  
 

Attachment: 

 

Amended Chestnut Extension Capital Project Ordinance  

 

 



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA  
                                                                                ORDINANCE # O160412-237  

TOWN OF INDIAN TRAIL             
 

 
 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE                                   
FOR CHESTNUT EXTENSION 

 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by Town Council of the Town of Indian Trail, North Carolina, that, pursuant to 
Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following capital project 
ordinance is hereby adopted: 
 
SECTION 1.  The project authorized is the Chestnut Improvements. 
 
SECTION 2.  The officers of the Town are hereby directed to proceed with the capital project within the 
term of the bond resolution and budget contained herein. 
 
SECTION 3.  The following amount is appropriated for this project: 
 

  
Current Budget 

 
Revised Budget 

Construction 
 

$1,516,890.00 
 

$1,516,890.00 
Design 

 
$45,000.00 

 
$254,056.00 

Right-of-Way 
 

$300,000.00 
 

$300,000.00 

  
$1,861,890.00 

 
$2,070,946.00 

 
SECTION 4.  The following revenues are anticipated to complete this project: 
  

  
Current Budget 

 
Revised Budget 

Proceeds from Street Bonds $1,272,290.00 
 

$1,481,346.00 
Transportation Improvement Fund $587,400.00 

 
$587,400.00 

Powell Bill Fund 
 

$2,200.00 
 

$2,200.00 

 
Total  $1,861,890.00 

 
$2,070,946.00 

 
SECTION 5.  The Finance Director is hereby directed to maintain within the capital project fund 
sufficient detailed accounting records to satisfy the requirements of an annual independent audit. The 
terms of the bond resolution also shall be met. 
 
SECTION 6.  Funds may be advanced from the General Fund for the purpose of making payments as 
due.  
 
SECTION 7.  The Finance Director is directed to report, on a quarterly basis, on the financial status of 
the project element in Section 3 and on the total revenues received or claimed.   
 
SECTION 8.  The Budget Officer is directed to include a detailed analysis of past and future costs and 
revenues on the capital project in every budget submission made to this Council. 
 



2 
 

SECTION 9.  Any unexpended funds appropriated shall be reserved by the Town Council for use as 
provided by applicable law or regulation. 
 
SECTION 10.  The Finance Director is authorized from time to time to transfer as a loan from the 
General Fund in an amount necessary to met obligations until such time as funding is received. When 
Funds are received, repayments to the General Fund may be made. 
 
SECTION 11.  Copies of this capital project ordinance shall be made available to the Clerk and the 
Finance Director for direction in carrying out this project. 
 
 

ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL this the 12th day of April, 2016. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  _______________________________ 
            Michael Alvarez, Mayor 
 
 
              Attest: 
  ________________________________ 
         Kelley Southward, Town Clerk 
    
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 5, 2016 Budget workshop with Mayor 
and Council 9AM-Civic Building. 

 
March 7, 2016 Staff will receive information as 
to estimating budget. 

 
March 22, 2016 Regular Meeting - 30 minute 
Public Comment section regarding budget 
related topics. 
 
April 4, 2016  Information from Department 
Managers to Town Manager. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

April 6 – 15, 2016 Review of budget 
information with Town Manager and Dept. 
Managers. 
 

April 12, 2016 Regular Meeting - 30 minute 
Public Comment section regarding budget 
related topics. 

 
April 16, 2016 Budget workshop with Mayor 

and Council 9AM-Civic Building. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 
BUDGET SCHEDULE  

 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
April 26, 2016 Regular Meeting - 30 minute 
Public Comment section regarding budget 
related topics. 
 

May 2, 2016 Send proposed budget to Mayor 
and Council (draft). 

  
May 4, 2016 Proposed budget ready for public 
review on website, at Library, and at Town Hall 
by appt with the Town Clerk, 704-821-5401 
(draft). 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

May 10, 2016 Regular Meeting - 30 minute 
Public Comment section regarding budget 
related topics.  
 

May 24, 2016 Regular Meeting – Public 
Hearing  - Time: 6:30pm – Location: Civic 
Building, 100 Navajo Trail, Indian Trail, NC 
 
 

June 14, 2016 Regular Meeting – Budget 

Adopted  

 
 

FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 
BUDGET SCHEDULE CONTINUED 

 



1 
 

         
P.O. Box 2430 

Indian Trail, North Carolina 28079 
 

PLANNING AND NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES 

Planning Board Transmittal for the April 12, 2016 Town Council Public Hearing 
Case:  ZT2016-003 Grand Opening Banners 

Reference Name  Grand Opening Banners 

Planning Board 
Meeting Date  March 15, 2016 

Members Present  

Chair Cowan      Jan Brown    Vice Chair Larry Miller    

Cathi  Higgins     Sidney Sandy    Vacant   

Alan Rosenberg   
 

Jorge Aponte    
Alternate 1 

Vacant      
Alternate 2 

 Vacant    
Alternate 3 

 

Case Found 
Complete Yes                         No  

Motion Recommend approval   
Member Making the 
Motion Board Member Alan Rosenburg 

Second the Motion Board Member Jorge Aponte 
Vote 5-0  

 
Project Summary 
This is a request to amend Chapters 940 a n d  9 7 0 of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) 
to remove the need to obtain a permit prior to installing grand opening banners. The amendment also 
includes a minor housekeeping modification to the same grand opening banner ordinance section. 
 
Town Council Action: Receive Planning Board Recommendation and public comments and: 

1. Concur with the findings and transmittal of the Planning Board to approve; or 
2. Concur with the findings and approve as modified by Council; or 
3. Do not make the findings and disapprove the amendment.  

 
Analysis 
This request is initiated by the Town to enable new business owners to install grand opening banners 
without first having to obtain a Town banner permit. The current ordinance requires a permit to be 



2 
 

obtained at a cost of $10 to display a banner for a 30-day duration. There are also location 
requirements associated with banners related to where they may be displayed on a building or 
elsewhere on a site (see ordinance below), which will remain unchanged. The Town Council indicated 
a desire to send a supportive message to the business community as the rationale for the desired 
amendment. This proposed ordinance amendment is only applicable to grand opening banners.  

 
The following will provide a summary level overview of the proposed UDO amendments: 
 
 New UDO Section: The amendment relocates grand opening banners to Chapter 940: Signs Not 

Requiring a Permit. 
 

 Location of Banners: The amendment does not change standards related to acceptable location 
of banners. 
 

 Banner Duration: The amendment changes the duration of grand opening banners to 45-days 
from 30-days. In light of the duration “clock” for grand opening banners beginning upon 
issuance of a Town zoning permit for the new business, the extra 15-days is intend to help 
mitigate any time lags between obtaining a zoning permit for the use/business and the actual 
opening of the business. 
 

 New “Backup” Process for Banners: The amendment creates a process for installing a grand 
opening banner after the initial 45-day period by obtaining a temporary sign permit (using the 
banner permit process in place today). This is intended to help address scenarios whereby a 
business owner fails to install a grand opening banner during the initial 45-day period. Grand 
opening banners permitted under this “backup” process would need to be obtained within the 
first 3-months of the business opening. Business owners may not obtain two grand opening 
banners using the conventional and “backup” processes. 
 

 Housekeeping Change: The current banner standards do not permit grand opening banners 
being displayed for multiple new businesses within a multitenant shopping center. The 
proposed amendment updates this section to permit multiple grand opening banner displays, 
which will make the UDO consistent with the Town’s administrative practice and be more 
accommodating to new businesses.   

 
Planning Board 
The Planning Board heard this item at its March 15, 2016 public meeting. There were no public 
comments. The Planning Board initially had concerns regarding the potential for business owners to have 
less display time available under the proposed amendments due to the potential time gap between zoning 
permit issuance and the business grand opening. Staff provided the Planning Board with a further 
explanation of the amendment as well as potential administrative techniques that would help mitigate that 
potential issue. The draft Planning Board minute are attached for further review and the audio recording 
of the meeting can be heard on Granicus.  
 
The Planning Board voted unanimously to transmit a recommendation to approve as presented by staff to 
the Town Council. 
  
The following consistency statements were found: 
 

1.   The proposed UDO amendment is consistent with the following goals: 
 

http://www.indiantrail.org/livemedia.php


3 
 

 Economic Development Goal #2: The proposed Town initiated text amendment will 
expand marketing opportunities for new businesses and is reflective of the Town’s 
commitment to support the Indian Trail business community; and 

 Land Use and Housing #6: The proposed text amendment’s elimination of the need 
for grand opening banner permits increases the predictability for new business owners 
in obtaining temporary signage. 

 
2.  This UDO ordinance amendment is in the best interest of the public because it helps create 

additional marketing opportunities for new businesses and makes the regulatory process more 
predictable, which will help promote job growth and ensure a more balanced tax base within the 
community. 

 
Staff Contact 
Rox Burhans, AICP, Planning Director 
rburhans@planning.indiantrail.org  
 
 
Attachment 1- Planning Board Report 
Attachment 2- Draft Ordinance 

Attachment 3 – Draft Planning Board Minutes of March 15, 2016 
 

 
 
  

mailto:rburhans@planning.indiantrail.org


4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TC ATTACHMENT 1- PLANNING BOARD  REPORT 



5 
 

           
 

P.O. Box 2430 
  Indian Trail, North Carolina 28079 

PLANNING AND NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 

Zoning Staff Report 
Case:  ZT 2016-003 Grand Opening Banners 
Reference Name Amendment of UDO Chapters 940 and 970 
Applicant Town of Indian Trail Town Council 
Submittal Date February 23, 2016 
Location Town-wide 
Tax Map Number N/A 

 
Plan Consistency 

Town of 
Indian Trail 
Comprehensive Plan 

 

Consistent With Goals of the Adopted 
Comprehensive Plan 

 
Recommendations & 
Comments 

 
Planning Staff 

 

Recommends Approval of Proposed Text 
Amendment. 

 
Project 
Summary 
 This is a request to amend Chapters 940 a n d  9 7 0 of the Unified Development Ordinance 
(UDO) to remove the need to obtain a permit prior to installing grand opening banners. The 
amendment also includes a minor housekeeping modification to the same grand opening banner 
ordinance section. 

 
Staff Recommendation- Staff recommends based on the guidance of the adopted plans that the text 
amendment be supported by recommending its approval to the Town Council. 

 
Analysis/Overview 
This request is initiated by the Town to enable new business owners to install grand opening 
banners without first having to obtain a Town banner permit. The current ordinance requires a 
permit to be obtained at a cost of $10 to display a banner for a 30-day duration. There are also 
location requirements associated with banners related to where they may be displayed on a building 
or elsewhere on a site (see ordinance below), which will remain unchanged. The Town Council 
indicated a desire to send a supportive message to the business community as the rationale for the 
desired amendment. This proposed ordinance amendment is only applicable to grand opening 
banners.  
 
The following will provide a summary level overview of the proposed UDO amendments: 
 
 New UDO Section: The amendment relocates grand opening banners to Chapter 940: Signs Not 

Requiring a Permit. 



6 
 

 Location of Banners: The amendment does not change standards related to acceptable location 
of banners. 
 

 Banner Duration: The amendment changes the duration of grand opening banners to 45-days 
from 30-days. In light of the duration “clock” for grand opening banners beginning upon 
issuance of a Town zoning permit for the new business, the extra 15-days is intend to help 
mitigate against any time lags between obtaining a zoning permit for the use/business and the 
actual opening of the business. 
 

 New “Backup” Process for Banners: The amendment creates a process for installing a grand 
opening banner after the initial 45-day period by obtaining a temporary sign permit (using the 
banner permit process in place today). This is intended to help address scenarios whereby a 
business owner fails to install a grand opening banner during the initial 45-day period. Grand 
opening banners permitted under this “backup” process would need to be obtained within the 
first 3-months of the business opening. Business owners may not obtain two grand opening 
banners using the conventional and “backup” processes. 
 

 Housekeeping Change: The current banner standards do not permit grand opening banners 
being displayed for multiple new businesses within a multitenant shopping center. The 
proposed amendment updates this section to permit multiple grand opening banner displays, 
which will make the UDO consistent with the Town’s administrative practice and be more 
accommodating to new businesses.   

 
Based on staff’s findings, we offer the following modifications for the Board’s consideration. For ease 
of reference, proposed new text is referenced in red/underlined font and deletions are referenced in 
strikethrough font.  

 

Chapter 940. Signs Not Requiring a Permit 

940.080 Grand opening banners for businesses located in non-single-family residential 
zoning districts provided that: 

1. 1 banner per-business 

2. Banner size shall not exceed 32 sq. ft. in area 

3. Banner shall be attached to the building façade for standalone businesses, above the business suite for 
multitenant commercial centers, or mounted within a Town approved banner display structure.  

4. Banner shall be removed within 45-days of issuance of the Town zoning verification or building upfit 
permit associated with the opened business within existing buildings or issuance of a zoning compliance 
certificate for businesses opened in new buildings through a site plan permit.  

5. Businesses that did not display a banner within the time period specified within UDO 940.080(D) may 
display a grand opening banner within the first three (3)-months of the business being open to the public 
subject to obtaining a temporary sign permit and compliance with UDO Chapter 940.080(A) through (C). 

 

UDO Chapter 970.080(B) Permitted Types of Storefront Signs 

Type Illustration Maximum 
Size/Height 

Maximum 
Number 

Location Duration 



7 
 

Temporary Banner 

“Grand Opening*”;  
“Going Out of 
Business”  

See UDO Chapter 
940.080 for Grand 
Opening Banners 

 

32 square feet 1 per business 
but no more 
than one in a 
multi-tenant 
commercial 
center. 

1. Attached to 
the building 
façade for 
standalone 
businesses. 

2. Mounted 
within a Town 
approved 
banner display 
structure or on 
front façade 
directly above 
the business 
suite for multi-
tenant 
commercial 
centers. 

45 days 
Grand 
Opening 

30 days 
Going out of 
Business 

 

 
Required Consistency Findings 
The Planning Board is required to make two consistency findings, one for consistency with Town 
adopted plans and another regarding the benefit of the public. Staff is of the opinion the following 
findings can be made: 

 
1.   The proposed UDO amendment is consistent with the following goals of the Comprehensive 

Plan: 
 
 Economic Development Goal #2: The proposed Town initiated text amendment will 

expand marketing opportunities for new businesses and is reflective of the Town’s 
commitment to support the Indian Trail business community; and 

 Land Use and Housing #6: The proposed text amendment’s elimination of the need 
for grand opening banner permits increases the predictability for new business owners 
in obtaining temporary signage. 

 
2.  This UDO ordinance amendment is in the best interest of the public because it helps create 

additional marketing opportunities for new businesses and makes the regulatory process more 
predictable, which will help promote job growth and ensure a more balanced tax base within the 
community. 

 
Staff recommends that the Planning Board make the required consistency findings and recommend 
adoption of this UDO Text Amendment ZT2016-003 as presented. 
 

Staff Contact 
Rox Burhans,   
704-821-5401 
 rburhans@planning.indiantrail.org 

 
 Attachment 1: Draft Ordinance
 

mailto:rburhans@planning.indiantrail.org


UDO TEXT AMENDMENT 
APPLICATION 

INDIAN TRAIL 
north carolina 

PLANNING & NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES 
130 Blythe Drive 

PO Box 2430 
Indian Trail, NC 28079 

Telephone (704) 821-5401 
Fax (704) 821-9045 

ONLY COMPLETE APPLICATIONS ACCEPTED 

Processing Fee $500.00 
A TECHNOLOGY FEE, 10°/o OF PROCESSING FEE, WILL BE APPLIED TO THE TOTAL FEE. 



Subject Section of the UDO: 

Name 
CSt . s 

Chapter: 

UDO TEXT AMENDMENT 
APPLICATION 

Purpose: ---+~+-~=---_R __ o_e:-1-~ ·_e-_,_l·-(J~- ~'---=-R:>_t:t_· v_t _n_c.._~~___:,._-_·-_vu-_vt._ovf:..._.-----4·-+-f-c:_[,~ ~~ ( VL-~v--11 
pv__ cfh fA_ I ~·-::t dhfZ{J or~ {j '-::, t:A ~1 · 

Contact Information -Applicant . U U ·--· v ' 0 
Name rz'WV\. Ft ' hc4 ~ r-V1<-{J 

Address Dr -

City __ _,_l h_ ti:...__:_l Cl_· fr\:.......-'..___·1~~=---· __ State _ NG _ _ Zip 

Phone ~ULf tS2{ . 9/ D I 

Email 

Applicant's Certification 

Signature 

Printed Name/Title 

Signature of 
Notary Public 

Notary Seal 

Fax 

Date _ ____.£7+-{ ..L7Jo144'-+'lht.L--- -

TOWN OF INDIAN TRAIL OFFICE USE ONLY 

CASE NUMBER: -z_ \ ;}..<J \ ~- OP "";::. 

AMOUNT OF FEE: _ ___,\!...:_V _!_j/ hl.L__ _ _ _ 

RECEIPT #: V / 1\-



8  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TOWN COUNCIL ATTACHMENT 2 
Draft Ordinance 

 



9  

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA ) 

)          ORDINANCE # O160609XYZ 
TOWN OF INDIAN TRAIL ) 

 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTERS 940, SIGNS NOT REQUIRING A 
PERMIT AND 970 TEMPORARY SIGN REGULATIONS, OF THE INDIAN 

TRAIL UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (UDO) RELATED TO 
TEMPORARY GRAND OPENING BANNERS IN 

 INDIAN TRAIL, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

WHEREAS, the Town is the applicant for ZT 2016-003 requesting to amend Chapters 940 
Signs Not Requiring a Permit and Chapter 970 Temporary Sign Regulations, to remove the need to 
obtain a permit prior to installing grand opening banners and related changes within the Temporary 
Sign Regulations of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO); and 

 
WHEREAS, this Zoning Amendment (ZT 2016-003) was duly noticed in compliance with 

North Carolina General Statutes; and 
 

 
WHEREAS, the amendment was heard by Planning Board on March 15, 2016 in a 

public meeting; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Board after hearing the amendment and deliberations made the 
following findings and recommended approval to the Town Council: 

 
1.   The proposed UDO amendment is consistent with the following goals of the Comprehensive 

Plan: 
 
 Economic Development Goal #2: The proposed Town initiated text amendment will 

expand marketing opportunities for new businesses and is reflective of the Town’s 
commitment to support the Indian Trail business community; and 

 Land Use and Housing #6: The proposed text amendment’s elimination of the need 
for grand opening banner permits increases the predictability for new business owners 
in obtaining temporary signage. 

 
2.  This UDO ordinance amendment is in the best interest of the public because it helps create 

additional marketing opportunities for new businesses and makes the regulatory process more 
predictable, which will help promote job growth and ensure a more balanced tax base within the 
community. 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council received the Planning Board transmittal in the required public 

hearing held on April 12, 2016, and after receiving the transmittal, public comment, and 
deliberation, voted to approve the amendment with the required findings and amendment 
recommendation as transmitted by the Planning Board. 



10  

NOW THEREFORE, BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF INDIAN TRAIL, NORTH 
CAROLINA HEREBY TAKES THE FOLLOWING ACTION: 

 

 
 

Section 1 – UDO CHAPTER 940 and UDO Chapter 970 is hereby Approved as shown in Exhibit A of 
this Ordinance; 

 
Section 2- This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon adoption. 

 
SO ORDAINED THIS 12TH DAY OF APRIL, 2016. 

THE TOWN COUNCIL OF INDIAN TRAIL 

 
By  

 
Honorable Michael L. Alvarez, Mayor 

 
 
 
Attest: 

 
 
 ______________________________________ 
 
 Kelley Southward, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 
 
 
TOWN ATTORNEY 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 



11  

ZT2016-003 EXHIBIT A  
Chapter 940. Signs Not Requiring a Permit 

940.010 Grand opening banners for businesses located in non-single-family 
residential zoning districts provided that: 

1. 1 banner per-business 

2. Banner size shall not exceed 32 sq. ft. in area 

3. Banner shall be attached to the building façade for standalone businesses, above the business suite for 
multitenant commercial centers, or mounted within a Town approved banner display structure.  

4. Banner shall be removed within 45-days of issuance of the Town zoning verification or building upfit 
permit associated with the opened business within existing buildings or issuance of a zoning compliance 
certificate for businesses opened in new buildings through a site plan permit.  

5. Businesses that did not display a banner within the time period specified within UDO 940.080(D) may 
display a grand opening banner within the first three (3)-months of the business being open to the 
public subject to obtaining a temporary sign permit and compliance with UDO Chapter 940.080(A) 
through (C). 

 

UDO Chapter 970.080(B) Permitted Types of Storefront Signs 

Type Illustration Maximum 
Size/Height 

Maximum 
Number 

Location Duration 

Temporary Banner 

“Grand Opening*”;  
“Going Out of 
Business”  

See UDO Chapter 
940.080 for Grand 
Opening Banners 

 

32 square feet 1 per business 
but no more 
than one in a 
multi-tenant 
commercial 
center. 

1. Attached to 
the building 
façade for 
standalone 
businesses. 

2. Mounted 
within a Town 
approved 
banner display 
structure or on 
front façade 
directly above 
the business 
suite for multi-
tenant 
commercial 
centers. 

45 days 
Grand 
Opening 

30 days 
Going out 
of Business 

 

 
  
 

 



12  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TC ATTACHMENT 3- DRAFT PLANNING BOARD MINUTES 



 
Town of Indian Trail  

 
P.O. Box 2430 

Indian Trail, North Carolina 28079 
Telephone 704-821-5401  

  Fax 704-821-9045 
PLANNING AND NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES 
March 15, 2016  

06:30 P.M.  
CALL TO ORDER  
ROLL CALL  
The following members of the governing body were present:  
Board Members: Larry Miller, Patricia Cowan, Jan Brown, Alan Rosenberg, and Jorge Aponte. 
Members Present but 
not Voting: 

None.  

Absent: Cathi Higgins, and Sidney Sandy.  
Staff Members: Rox Burhans-Planning Director, Gretchen Coperine- Senior Planner, and Pam Good- 

Board Secretary 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES- February 16, 2016 
Member Miller made a motion to approve the minutes as written, seconded by Member Brown.  Vote to 
approve was unanimous.  
 
PUBLIC ITEMS- ZT 2016-001 Hotel/Motel Mixed Use Buildings and CPA2016-001:  UDO Text 
Amendment to permit hotel-motel uses and mixed-use buildings within the Village Center Overlay within 
the General Business District.  Applicant:  The Moser Group 
  
Planning Director Rox Burhans began the presentation with the hotel request overview. 
  Hotel Amended Sections  
           Amend UDO Sections:  

– 520.020 Table of uses 
– 7220 Use Specific standards 
– 810.050 Landscaping 
– 1010.010 Parking standards  

   
Intent: Applicant has potential sites in  

 Sun Valley Village for a national hotel chain 
 

    Director Burhans researched various areas with the following results: 
 Concord: Permitted outright 
 Kannapolis: Permitted outright 
 Huntersville Permitted outright 
 Mathews: Permitted outright 
 Mooresville: Conditional zoning only 
 Rock Hill: Permitted outright and via SUP 

Staff Burhans recommended the focus of such a development would be in the Sun Valley Village area only.  

http://indiantrail.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=726&meta_id=73098
http://indiantrail.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=726&meta_id=73099
http://indiantrail.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=726&meta_id=73100
http://indiantrail.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=726&meta_id=73100
http://indiantrail.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=726&meta_id=73100
http://indiantrail.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=726&meta_id=73101


 
He presented various proposed development standards for the board’s consideration.   He also mentioned the 
proposed text amendment would require some housekeeping changes (as seen in the Staff Report) in the present 
Unified Development Ordinance. 
 
Sr. Planner Gretchen Coperine continued the presentation with the Mixed Use Buildings Request and gave a 
definition of a Mixed Use Building. 
 
Mixed Use Buildings Request 

Amend Sections 
 UDO 520.020(G) Permitted Uses Table 
 UDO 520.040 Floor Area 
 New UDO 7230 Standards 
 UDO 810.050 Land Use Groups 
 UDO 1610.100 Definitions 
    

     Intent  
 Allow mixed use buildings within specific Village Centers and provide development standards 

 
UDO 1610.100 Definition 

– Multi-story building with at least 1 floor of residential and 1 floor of non-residential uses 
– Retail, office, apartments, condos 

UDO 520.020(G) Permitted Uses 
– Permitted under General Business District in specific Village Overlay 

UDO 7230 Standards 
– Must be approved through Conditional Zoning 
– Allowed only in Austin Village, Sun Valley, Old Monroe, Rocky River 
– Must have commercial/office on ground level 
– Can have up to 75% of floor area as residential 
– Individual floors are limited to either residential or non-residential  
– Once residential level is established, no alternating allowed 
– Intensity limits  
– Design  
– New: Landscaping  

 
Staff Coperine read into the record additional language to proposed changes for section UDO 810.050 Land Use 
Groups with regard to landscape requirements for mixed use buildings.  She then showed slides of an example 
of mixed use in Matthews called 'North End’. 
 
The Staff Recommendation was read into the record that the findings were consistent with the Town’s 
comprehensive plan regarding land use and housing and the economic development  and would be in the best 
interest of the public. 
1. The proposed UDO amendments are consistent with the following goals of the Comprehensive  
Plan:  
 Land Use and Housing Goals #1, 2, 4 and 5: The proposed amendments are consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan because they will enable diverse uses, densities and housing types, avoid potential land use incompatibilities, 
promote sustainable development through the use of smart growth principles, and encourage high quality design; and  
 Economic Development #1: The proposed amendments will also enable investment in the commercial areas of 
Indian Trail that will help foster economic development initiatives that ensure a more balanced tax base within our 
community as well as locate residents and customers in close proximity to local businesses.  
2. This UDO ordinance amendment is in the best interest of the public because it seeks to concentrate more intense 
development within the village centers, protect the low density single-family areas as envisioned in the 




